
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS  
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  
For the Fiscal Year Ended  

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS  
Annual Financial Report  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
1. Independent Auditor's Report 
3. Management's Discussion and Analysis 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 
Government-wide financial statements: 
13. Statement of Net Position 
14. Statement of Activities 

   
Fund financial statements: 
15. Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 

 16. Reconciliation of the Government Funds 
17. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
18. Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of 

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
19. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual- 

General Fund  
20. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual- 

Municipal Development District Fund  
 21. Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds  

23. Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds  
24. Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds  
26. Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
Required Supplementary Information: 
77. Employees Retirement System Information 
79. OPEB System Information 
 
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules: 
80. Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds 
81. Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Non-Major 

Governmental Funds 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BEYER & CO. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Wayne R. Beyer, C.P.A. 

 

P.O. Box 366 / 442 West Oaklawn 
Pleasanton, Texas 78064 

Phone: (830) 569-8781 ~ Fax: (830) 569-6776 

E-mail: beyerandco@sbcglobal.net 
 

111 North Odem 
Sinton, Texas 78387 

Please reply to Pleasanton address 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Natalia, Texas 

 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Natalia, Texas, as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Natalia, Texas, as of September 30, 2018, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective 
budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Municipal Development District Fund for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
Other Matters 

 
Required Supplementary Information 

 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, Employee Retirement System Information, and the OPEB system information on 
pages 3–12, 77-78, and 79 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

 
Other Information 

 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Natalia, Texas’ basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BEYER & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountants 
July 11, 2019 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
As management of the City of Natalia, Texas, we offer readers of the City of Natalia, Texas’ 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of 
Natalia, Texas for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.   
 
Financial Highlights 
 
. The assets of the City of Natalia, Texas, exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most 

recent fiscal year by $2,793,697 (Net Position). Of this amount, $316,174 or 11% 
(unrestricted Net Position) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors.  

 
. The government’s total Net Position increased by $39,491. This increase is due mainly 

to an increase in charges for services and careful budget management. 
 
. The City of Natalia, Texas’ total debt increased by $12,191 (1.82 percent) during the 

current fiscal year. The key factor was the capital lease issuance of $74,134. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Natalia, 
Texas’ basic financial statements. The City of Natalia, Texas’ basic financial statements 
comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements:  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Natalia, Texas’ finances, in a 
manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City of Natalia, Texas’ assets 
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as Net Position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the City of Natalia, Texas is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s Net Position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in Net Position are reported as soon as 
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.   
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Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation 
leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Natalia, 
Texas that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their 
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of 
the City of Natalia, Texas include general government, public safety, highways and streets, 
sanitation, economic development, and culture and recreation.  The business-type activities of 
the City of Natalia, Texas include a Utility System. 

The government-wide financial statements include only the City of Natalia, Texas itself (known 
as the primary government.) 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-14 for this report. 
 
Fund financial statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City 
of Natalia, Texas, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All other funds of the City of 
Natalia, Texas can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may 
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City of Natalia, Texas maintains eight individual governmental funds.  Information is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and 
the municipal development district fund and the other six governmental funds are combined into 
a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.   
 
The City of Natalia, Texas adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A 
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund and the municipal 
development district fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on 15-20 of this report. 
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Proprietary funds: The City of Natalia, Texas maintains one type of proprietary fund.  
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. The City of Natalia, Texas uses enterprise funds to 
account for its Utility operations.  
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the Utility operations, which is considered to be a major fund of the City of 
Natalia, Texas.  The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-25 of 
this report.  
 
Notes to the financial statements:  The notes provided additional information that is essential 
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 26-78 of this report. 
 
Other information:  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Natalia, 
Texas’ progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.  Required 
supplementary information can be found on page 77-78 of this report. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds 
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions.  
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 80-81 of this 
report.  
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, Net Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position.  In the case of the City of Natalia, Texas, assets exceeded liabilities by 
$2,793,697 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 
A significant portion of the City of Natalia, Texas’ Net Position (80 percent) reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding.  The City of Natalia, Texas uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available 
for future spending.  Although the City of Natalia, Texas’ investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. The remaining balance of unrestricted Net Position, $316,174, may be 
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS 
      NET POSITION 
                    

 
Governmental Business-type Total 

 
Activities Activities   

  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Current and Other Assets $189,728  $187,524  $123,074  $205,181  $312,802  $392,705  
Restricted Assets: 261,424  213,791  214,830  44,556  476,254  258,347  
Capital Assets: 647,720  663,693  2,204,256  2,229,109  2,851,976  2,892,802  
Total Assets 1,098,872  1,065,008  2,542,160  2,478,846  3,641,032  3,543,854  

 
        

 
  

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 15,876  13,513  13,595  7,492  29,471  21,005  

       Long-Term Liabilities 253,512  254,068  428,523  415,776  682,035  669,844  
Other Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets) 0  0  81,267  67,830  81,267  67,830  
Other Liabilities 32,221  27,535  67,708  42,709  99,929  70,244  
Total Liabilities 285,733  281,603  577,498  526,315  863,231  807,918  
  

      Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,313  1,759  6,262  976  13,575  2,735  

       Invested in Capital Assets,  
              Net of Related Debt 441,322  463,693  1,805,058  1,850,505  2,246,380  2,314,198  

Restricted 231,143  197,989  0  0  231,143  197,989  
Unrestricted 149,237  133,477  166,937  108,542  316,174  242,019  
Total Net Position $821,702  $795,159  $1,971,995  $1,959,047  $2,793,697  $2,754,206  

 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Natalia, Texas is able to report positive balances 
in all three categories of Net Position for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate 
governmental activities and business-type activities.  The same situation held true for the prior 
fiscal year.  
 
There was an increase of $33,154 in restricted Net Position reported in connection with the City 
of Natalia, Texas’ governmental and business-type activities. This increase is the result of 
Municipal Development District sales tax proceeds. 
 
The government’s total Net Position increased by $39,491. This increase is due mainly to an 
increase in charges for services and careful budget management. 
 
Governmental activities:  Governmental activities increased the City of Natalia, Texas’ Net 
Position by $26,543, thereby accounting for 67.21 percent of the total increase in the Net 
Position of the City of Natalia, Texas.  This increase is due mainly to careful budget 
management. 
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS 
      CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
      

 
Governmental Business-type Total 

 
Activities Activities   

  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Revenues: 

      Program Revenues: 
        Charges for Services $27,344  $46,798  $783,671  $657,761  $811,015  $704,559  

  Operating Grants and Contributions 
 

31,071  
  

0  31,071  
  Capital Grants and Contributions 77,797  130,000  

 
253,004  77,797  383,004  

General Revenues: 
        Maintenance and Operations Taxes 300,663  288,814  

  
300,663  288,814  

  Sales Taxes 208,282  207,781  
  

208,282  207,781  
  Franchise Taxes 44,450  38,593  

  
44,450  38,593  

  Sale of Fixed Assets 0  0  7,721  
 

7,721  0  
  Unrestricted Investment Earnings 727  552  320  205  1,047  757  
  Miscellaneous 8,744  7,850  

  
8,744  7,850  

            Total Revenue 668,007  751,459  791,712  910,970  1,459,719  1,662,429  

       Expenses: 
          General Administration 208,569  $208,645  

  
208,569  208,645  

    Public Safety 324,796  297,593  
  

324,796  297,593  
    Public Facilities 62,575  

   
62,575  0  

    Public Transportation 7,195  6,041  
  

7,195  6,041  
    Culture and Recreation 15,458  8,837  

  
15,458  8,837  

    Interest and Fiscal Charges 7,668  22,915  
  

7,668  22,915  
    Utility     793,967  781,849  793,967  781,849  
            Total Expenses 626,261  544,031  793,967  781,849  1,420,228  1,325,880  

       Increase in Net Position before 41,746  207,428  (2,255) 129,121  39,491  336,549  
  transfers and special items 

          Transfers (15,203) (33,245) 15,203  33,245  0  0  

       Increase in Net Position 26,543  174,183  12,948  162,366  39,491  336,549  
Net Position at 09/30/2017 - Restated 795,159  620,976  1,959,047  1,796,681  2,754,206  2,417,657  
Net Position at 09/30/2018 $821,702  $795,159  $1,971,995  $1,959,047  $2,793,697  $2,754,206  
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Program Revenues 

   
Operating Capital 

  
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 

     Primary Government 
    Government Activities: 
        General Administration $208,569  $1,000  $0  $0  

    Public Safety 324,796  26,344  
      Public Facilities 62,575  

  
77,797  

    Public Transportation 7,195  
       Culture and Recreation 15,458  
       Interest and Fiscal Charges 7,668  
         Total Government Activities $626,261  $27,344  $0  $77,797  

     
     
     Revenues by source - Governmental Activities  

    
 

REVENUES % 
    Charges for Services $27,344  4% 

    Capital Grants and Contributions 77,797  12% 
    Maintenance and Operations Taxes 300,663  45% 
    Sales Taxes 208,282  31% 
    Franchise Taxes 44,450  7% 
    Unrestricted Investment Earnings 727  0% 
    Miscellaneous 8,744  1% 
  

 
$668,007  100% 

   
 
For the most part, increases and decreases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth 
or decline in the demand for services.  
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Business-type Activities:  Business-type activities increased the City of Natalia, Texas’ Net 
Position by $12,948, accounting for 32.79 percent of the total increase in the government’s Net 
Position.  This increase is due mainly to an increase in charges for services and careful budget 
management. 
 

  
Program Revenues 

   
Capital 

  
Charges for Grants and 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions 

    Primary government 
   Business-type Activities: 
       Utility $793,967  $783,671  $0  

      Total business-type Activities $793,967  $783,671  $0  

    Revenues by source - Business-type Activities 
   

 
REVENUES % 

   Charges for Services $783,671  99% 
   Sale of Fixed Assets 7,721  1% 
   Unrestricted Investment Earnings 320  0% 
 

 
$791,712  100% 

  
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the City of Natalia, Texas uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds:  The focus of the City of Natalia, Texas’ governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such 
information is useful in assessing the City of Natalia, Texas’ financing requirements.  In 
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Natalia, Texas’ governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $301,260, an increase of $41,920 in comparison with the 
prior year. Approximately 10% of this total amount $30,581 constitutes unassigned fund 
balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Natalia, Texas.  At the end of the 
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $30,581, while total fund 
balance reached $30,631.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to 
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  
Unassigned, undesignated fund balance represents 6 percent of total general fund 
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 6 percent of that same amount. 
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The fund balance of the City of Natalia, Texas’ general fund increased by $4,734 during the 
current fiscal year.  This increase is mainly attributable to careful budget management. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year the restricted fund balance of the municipal development 
district fund was $205,551, while total fund balance reached $205,551. As a measure of the 
municipal development district fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both restricted fund 
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Restricted fund balance represents 
535 percent of total municipal development district fund expenditures, while total fund balance 
represents 535 percent of that same amount. 
 
The fund balance of the City of Natalia, Texas’ municipal development district fund increased by 
$30,069 during the current fiscal year. This increase is mainly attributable to sales tax receipts 
of $66,998. 
 
 
Proprietary funds:  The City of Natalia, Texas’ proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position of the Utility Fund at the end of the year amounted to $166,937. The 
total increase in Net Position for the Utility Fund was $12,948.  Key factors in this overall 
increase are examined above. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
During the year there was no change in appropriations between the original and final amended 
budget for the general fund.  
 
 
During the year there was a decrease in appropriations between the original and final amended 
budget for the municipal development district fund of $2,374. The main decrease was in general 
administration of $2,374.  
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets: The City of Natalia, Texas’ investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business-type activities as of September 30, 2018, amounts to $2,851,976 (net of 
accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and 
system, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and bridges.  
The total decrease in the City of Natalia, Texas’ investment in capital assets for the current 
fiscal year was $40,826 or 1 percent (a 2 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 1 
percent decrease for business-type activities). 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: The City had no 
major construction projects during the year.  
 
City of Natalia, Texas’ Capital Assets (Net of depreciation) 
 

CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS 
      CAPITAL ASSETS (net of depreciation) 
                    

 
Governmental Business-type Total 

 
Activities Activities   

  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Land $314,953  $314,953  $451,824  $451,824  $766,777  $766,777  
Construction in Progress 0  61,839  0  0  0  61,839  
Building and Improvements 302,809  263,724  42,080  43,187  344,889  306,911  
Intangible 0  0  0  0  0  0  
Machinery and Equipment 29,958  23,177  43,125  19,472  73,083  42,649  
Infrastructure 0  0  0  0  0  0  
Distribution System 0  0  1,667,227  1,714,626  1,667,227  1,714,626  
Total $647,720  $663,693  $2,204,256  $2,229,109  $2,851,976  $2,892,802  

 
Additional information of the City of Natalia, Texas’ capital assets can be found in note IV.C on 
pages 38-39 of this report. 
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Long-term debt:  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Natalia, Texas had the 
following outstanding bonded debt. 
 
City of Natalia, Texas’ Outstanding Bonded Debt 
 

 
Beginning 

  
Ending Due within Due after 

 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance one year one year 

Governmental activities: 
      Tax Bonds $200,000  $0  $16,000  $184,000  $18,000  $166,000  

 
$200,000  $0  $16,000  $184,000  $18,000  $166,000  

       Business-type activities: 
      Revenue Bonds $331,000  

 
$20,000  $311,000  $20,000  $291,000  

 
$331,000  $0  $20,000  $311,000  $20,000  $291,000  

       Total $531,000  $0  $36,000  $495,000  $38,000  $457,000  
 
The City of Natalia, Texas’ total bonded debt decreased by $36,000 during the current fiscal 
year. This was the result of the payment of bond principle of $36,000. 
 
Additional information on the City of Natalia, Texas’ long-term debt can be found in note IV.F on 
pages 40-42 of this report. 
 
Economic Factors  
 
The Eagle Ford Oil and Gas Shale have brought in new businesses which have increased sales 
taxes and charges for services. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Natalia, Texas’ 
finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of 
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Office of the Finance Department; P.O. Box 270; Natalia, Texas 78059. 
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $52,137 $53,017 $105,154
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles) 137,591 70,057 207,648
Restricted Assets:
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 261,424 214,830 476,254
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
  Land 314,953 451,824 766,777
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
  Building and Improvements 302,809 42,080 344,889
  Intangible 0 0
  Machinery and Equipment 29,958 43,125 73,083
  Distribution System 1,667,227 1,667,227
Total Assets $1,098,872 $2,542,160 $3,641,032

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  GASB 68
   Deferred  Outflow-Contributions  After  12/31/2016 13,504 11,564 25,068
   Difference in expected and actual experience 1,161 994 2,155
 GASB 75
   Difference in assumption changes 1,211 1,037 2,248
    Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 15,876 13,595 29,471

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $23,738 $62,529 $86,267
Accrued Wages 6,594 4,345 10,939
Interest Payable 229 834 1,063
Deferred Revenues 1,660 0 1,660
Consumer Meter Deposit 81,267 81,267
Noncurrent Liabilities:
  Due Within One Year 30,771 47,953 78,724
  Due in More Than One Year 222,741 380,570 603,311
    Total Liabilities 285,733 577,498 863,231

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  GASB 68
   Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension plan inv. 7,313 6,262 13,575
    Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,313 6,262 13,575

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 441,322 1,805,058 2,246,380
Restricted
    Construction 9,531 9,531
    Debt Service 6,496 6,496
    Municipal Court Reserve 9,419 9,419
    Municipal Development 205,551 205,551
    Public Safety 146 146
Unrestricted 149,237 166,937 316,174
Total Net Position $821,702 $1,971,995 $2,793,697

0 0 0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net (Expense)
Program Revenues Revenue and Net (Expense)

Operating Capital Changes in Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Net Changes in

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Primary Government
Government Activities:
    General Administration $208,569 $1,000 $0 ($207,569) ($207,569)
    Public Safety 324,796 26,344 (298,452) (298,452)
    Public Facilities 62,575 77,797 15,222 15,222
    Public Transportation 7,195 (7,195) (7,195)
    Culture and Recreation 15,458 (15,458) (15,458)
    Interest and Fiscal Charges 7,668 (7,668) (7,668)
      Total Government Activities 626,261 27,344 0 77,797 (521,120) 0 (521,120)

Business-Type Activities:
    Utility 793,967 783,671 0 (10,296) (10,296)
      Total Business-Type Activities 793,967 783,671 0 0 0 (10,296) (10,296)

Total Primary Government $1,420,228 $811,015 $0 $77,797 (521,120) (10,296) (531,416)

General Revenues
  Property Taxes, Levies for General Purposes 300,663 300,663
  Sales Taxes 208,282 208,282
  Franchise Taxes 44,450 44,450
  Unrestricted Investment Earnings 727 320 1,047
  Sale of Fixed Assets 7,721 7,721
  Miscellaneous 8,744 8,744
Transfers (15,203) 15,203 0
    Total General Revenues and Transfers 547,663 23,244 570,907
    Change in Net Position 26,543 12,948 39,491
Net Position - Beginning - Restated 795,159 1,959,047 2,754,206
Net Position - Ending $821,702 $1,971,995 $2,793,697

0 0 0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Municipal
Development Other Total

General District Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $42,606 $0 $9,531 $52,137
Receivables (Net of Allowance
  for Uncollectibles) 103,287 53 16,340 119,680
Restricted Assets:
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 50 205,827 55,547 261,424
  Total Assets $145,943 $205,880 $81,418 $433,241

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Accounts Payable $7,069 $329 $16,340 $23,738
Accrued Wages 6,594 6,594
Deferred Revenue 1,660 1,660
    Total Liabilities 15,323 329 16,340 31,992

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Deferred Property Taxes 99,989 99,989
            Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 99,989 0 0 99,989

Fund Balances:
  Restricted
    Construction 9,531 9,531
    Debt Service 6,496 6,496
    Municipal Court Reserve 9,419 9,419
    Municipal Development 205,551 205,551
    Public Safety 50 96 146
  Committed
    General Reserve 30,667 30,667
    Park 8,869 8,869
  Unassigned 30,581 30,581
  Total Fund Balance 30,631 205,551 65,078 301,260
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
      and Fund Balances $145,943 $205,880 $81,418 $433,241

0 0 0 0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds Balance Sheet $301,260

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
("SNA") are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 647,720
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period 
        expenditures are deferred in the funds (net of allowance for uncollectibles). 99,989
  GASB 68
   Deferred  Outflow-Contributions  After  12/31/2017 13,504
   Difference in expected and actual experience 1,161
   Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension plan inv. (7,313)
GASB 75
   Difference in assumption changes 1,211
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
        expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 17,911
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
           current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (253,741)

Net Position of Governmental Activities - Statement of Net Position $821,702

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 0
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Municipal
Development Other Total

General District Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes
  Property $288,649 $0 $0 $288,649
  Sales 141,284 66,998 208,282
  Franchise 44,450 44,450
Intergovernmental and Contributions 31,722 46,075 77,797
Charges for Services 1,000 1,000
Fines and Forfeitures 35,296 35,296
Interest 0 649 78 727
Miscellaneous 7,895 849 8,744
  Total Revenues 550,296 68,496 46,153 664,945

EXPENDITURES
Current:
    General Administration 182,940 14,590 197,530
    Public Safety 332,054 332,054
    Public Transportation 7,195 7,195
    Culture and Recreation 7,029 7,029
  Capital Projects - 
         Capital Outlay and Other 62,575 62,575
   Debt Service
    Principal Retirement 16,000 16,000
    Interest Retirement 7,837 7,837
  Total Expenditures 522,189 38,427 69,604 630,220

  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
    Expenditures 28,107 30,069 (23,451) 34,725

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Other Financing Sources - Capital Lease 22,398 22,398
  Operating Transfers In 4,972 91,325 96,297
  Operating Transfers Out (50,743) (60,757) (111,500)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (23,373) 0 30,568 7,195
Net Changes in Fund Balances 4,734 30,069 7,117 41,920

Fund Balances - Beginning 25,897 175,482 57,961 259,340
Fund Balances - Ending $30,631 $205,551 $65,078 $301,260

0 0 0 0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $41,920

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
("SNA") are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 
         of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
        and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
        exceeded depreciation in the current period. (15,973)
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 12,014
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
        expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. (8,952)
  GASB 68
    Deferred Outflow of Resources-Contribution.  This is the change in these amounts this year. (9)
    Difference in expected and actual experience 2,903
    Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension plan inv. (7,296)
GASB 75
   Difference in assumption changes. This is the change in these amounts this year. 1,211
Increase in loan principal are receipts in the funds but not revenue in the SOA. (22,398)
Repayment of loan principal is an expenditure in the funds but not an expense in the SOA. 16,000
(Increase) decrease in compensated absences payable from beginning of period to end of period. (2,484)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest payable from beginning of period to end of period. 169
(Increase) decrease in OPEB liability from beginning of period to end of period. 2,458
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability from beginning of period to end of period. 6,980
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities - Statement of Activities $26,543

0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes
  Property $290,504 $290,504 $288,649 ($1,855)
  Sales 148,000 148,000 141,284 (6,716)
  Franchise 47,000 47,000 44,450 (2,550)
Intergovernmental 30,000 30,000 31,722 1,722
Charges for Services 500 500 1,000 500
Fines and Forfeitures 40,000 40,000 35,296 (4,704)
Interest 50 50 0 (50)
Miscellaneous 1,050 1,050 7,895 6,845
  Total Revenues 557,104 557,104 550,296 (6,808)

EXPENDITURES
Current:
    General Administration
      Code Compliance 6,900 6,900 2,331 4,569
      General Administration 172,780 172,780 180,609 (7,829)
    Public Safety
      Animal Control 0
      Police 295,530 295,530 290,663 4,867
      Municipal Court 18,350 18,350 18,993 (643)
    Culture and Recreation
      Parks 0
    Public Transportation
      Streets 14,800 14,800 7,195 7,605
   Debt Service
    Principal Retirement 0
    Interest Retirement 0
  Total Expenditures 508,360 508,360 499,791 8,569

  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
    Expenditures 48,744 48,744 50,505 1,761

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Operating Transfers In 0
  Operating Transfers Out (48,744) (48,744) (50,743) (1,999)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (48,744) (48,744) (50,743) (1,999)

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary Basis $0 $0 (238) ($238)

Reconciliation from Cash Basis to Modified Accrual:
  Operating Transfers In 4,972
  Other Financing Sources - Capital Lease 22,398
 Capital Lease - Police Vehicle (22,398)
Net Changes in Fund Balances-Modified Accrual Basis 4,734
Fund Balances - Beginning 25,897
Fund Balances - Ending $30,631

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 0
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes
  Sales $66,000 $66,000 $66,998 $998
Interest 325 325 649 324
Miscellaneous 250 412 849 437
  Total Revenues 66,575 66,737 68,496 1,759

EXPENDITURES
Current:
    General Administration
      General Administration 30,575 28,201 14,590 13,611
   Debt Service
    Principal Retirement 23,000 23,000 16,000 7,000
    Interest Retirement 13,000 13,000 7,837 5,163
  Total Expenditures 66,575 64,201 38,427 25,774

  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
    Expenditures 0 2,536 30,069 27,533

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Operating Transfers In 0
  Operating Transfers Out 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances 0 2,536 30,069 27,533

Fund Balances - Beginning 175,482 175,482 175,482
Fund Balances - Ending $175,482 $178,018 $205,551 $27,533

0

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Utility Utility Totals
Current Prior Current

Year Year Year
ASSETS
  Current Assets
    Cash and Cash Equivalents $53,017 $139,525 $53,017
    Accounts Receivables (Net of Allowance
      for Uncollectibles) 70,057 65,656 70,057
  Total Current Assets 123,074 205,181 123,074

 Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets:
  Cash and Cash Equivalents - Water Meters 81,267 44,556 81,267
  Cash and Cash Equivalents - Short Lived Assets 18,901 18,901
  Cash and Cash Equivalents - Utility Capital 114,662 114,662
  Total Restricted Assets 214,830 44,556 214,830

  Capital Assets
    Land 451,824 451,824 451,824
    Construction in Progress 0 0 0
    Buildings and Improvements 57,668 57,668 57,668
    Machinery and Equipment 204,272 180,059 204,272
    Distribution System 5,445,624 5,373,835 5,445,624
  Total Capital Assets 6,159,388 6,063,386 6,159,388
  Less Accumulated Depreciation
  Total Capital Assets (Net of (3,955,132) (3,834,277) (3,955,132)
  Accumulated Depreciation) 2,204,256 2,229,109 2,204,256

  Total Noncurrent Assets 2,204,256 2,229,109 2,204,256

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  GASB 68
   Deferred  Outflow-Contributions  After  12/31/2016 7,492 0
   Deferred  Outflow-Contributions  After  12/31/2017 11,564 11,564
   Difference in expected and actual experience 994 994
 GASB 75
   Difference in assumption changes 1,037 1,037
     Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 13,595 7,492 13,595

TOTAL ASSETS $2,555,755 $2,486,338 $2,555,755

(continued)
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(continued)

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Utility Utility Totals
Current Prior Current

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY Year Year Year
AND OTHER CREDITS
  Liabilities
    Current Liabilities (Payable from Current Assets)
      Accounts Payable $62,529 $36,852 $62,529
      Accrued Wages 4,345 4,991 4,345
      Accrued Interest Payable 834 866 834
      Compensated Absences 6,804 6,569 6,804
      Deferred Revenues 0
      Capital Leases - Current 21,149 11,142 21,149
      Bonds Payable - Current 20,000 20,000 20,000
    Total Current Liabilities  (Payable from Current Assets) 115,661 80,420 115,661

    Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets)
      Consumer Meter Deposits 81,267 67,830 81,267

   Total Current Liabilities 
        Payable from Restricted Assets 81,267 67,830 81,267

    Noncurrent Liabilities
      Net Pension Liability 13,155 19,132 13,155
      OPEB Payable 9,366 11,471 9,366
      Capital Lease Payable 67,049 36,462 67,049
      Bonds Payable 291,000 311,000 291,000

    Total Noncurrent Liabilities 380,570 378,065 380,570

  Total Liabilities 577,498 526,315 577,498

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  GASB 68
   Difference in expected and actual experience 966 0
   Difference in projected and actual earnings on investments 6,262 10 6,262
     Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 6,262 976 6,262

  Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,805,058 1,850,505 1,805,058
  Restricted for Short Lived Assets - Expendable 18,901 18,901
  Restricted for Utility Capital - Expendable 114,662 114,662
  Unrestricted 33,374 108,542 33,374
Total Net Position $1,971,995 $1,959,047 $1,971,995

0 0 0
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Utility Utility Totals

Current Prior Current
Year Year Year

OPERATING REVENUES:
  Charges for Services - Water $322,207 $278,299 $322,207
  Charges for Services - Sewer 200,591 150,560 200,591
  Charges for Services - Garbage 150,683 144,245 150,683
  Charges for Services - General Fees 54,360 44,729 54,360
  Charges for Services - Other 45,602 30,812 45,602
  Miscellaneous 10,228 9,116 10,228
Total Operating Revenues 783,671 657,761 783,671

OPERATING EXPENSES:
  Personal Services 264,128 260,747 264,128
  Supplies 45,305 36,508 45,305
  Other Services and Charges 192,371 202,878 192,371
  Sanitation Services 126,104 123,113 126,104
  Depreciation 153,983 145,677 153,983
Total Operating Expenses 781,891 768,923 781,891

  Operating Income (Loss) 1,780 (111,162) 1,780

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
  Interest Income 320 205 320
  Sale of Fixed Assets 7,721 7,721
  Interest and Fiscal Charges (12,076) (12,926) (12,076)
  Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (4,035) (12,721) (4,035)

    Income Before Contributions and Transfers (2,255) (123,883) (2,255)
  Intergovernmental 253,004 0
  Transfers In (Out) - Net 15,203 33,245 15,203

Change in Net Position 12,948 162,366 12,948
Total Net Position - Beginning - Restated 1,959,047 1,796,681 1,959,047
Total Net Position - Ending $1,971,995 $1,959,047 $1,971,995

0 0 0

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Utility Utility Totals
Current Prior Current

Year Year Year
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Receipts from Customers and Users $792,707 $643,344 $792,707
  Payments to Suppliers (338,135) (346,798) (338,135)
  Payments to Employees (273,438) (248,935) (273,438)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 181,134 47,611 181,134

Cash Flows from Non-Capital 
and Related Financing Activities
  Transfers Out 15,203 33,245 15,203
  Intergovernmental 253,004 0
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital 
and Related Financing Activities 15,203 286,249 15,203

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
  Principal Payment on Revenue Bonds, Notes
        and Capital Leases (31,142) (29,672) (31,142)
  Proceeds from Capital Debt 51,736 51,736
  Sale of Fixed Assets 7,721 7,721
  Interest and Fiscal Charges (12,076) (12,926) (12,076)
  Purchases of Capital Assets (129,130) (232,809) (129,130)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital 
and Related Financing Activities (112,891) (275,407) (112,891)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
  Interest Received 320 205 320
Net Cash Provided (Used) 
by Investment Activities 320 205 320

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents 83,766 58,658 83,766

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 184,081 125,423 184,081
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $267,847 $184,081 $267,847

0 0 0

Restricted Cash $214,830 $44,556 $214,830
Unrestricted Cash 53,017 139,525 53,017

$267,847 $184,081 $267,847
(continued)
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(continued)

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Utility Utility Totals
Current Prior Current

Year Year Year
Reconciliation of Operating Income to
  Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
  Activities:
  Operating Income (Loss) $1,780 ($111,162) $1,780
Adjustments to Reconcile to Net Cash Flow
  Non-Cash Items Included in Net Income
    Depreciation 153,983 145,677 153,983

Changes in Current Items
  Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (4,401) 2,615 (4,401)
  Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses 0 130 0

  GASB 68
    Decrease (Increase) Deferred Outflow of Resources-Contributions (4,072) 288 (4,072)
    Decrease (Increase)  Difference in expected and actual exp. (1,960) 4,745 (1,960)
    Increase (Decrease) Difference in proj. and actual earnings 6,252 4,565 6,252
 GASB 75
  Decrease (Increase) Difference in assumption changes (1,037) (1,037)

  Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 25,677 15,582 25,677
  Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages (646) (27) (646)
  Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Interest Payable (32) (11) (32)
  Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 235 2,350 235
  Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenues 0 (14,567) 0
  Increase (Decrease) in Consumer Meter Deposits 13,437 (2,465) 13,437
  Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability (5,977) (109) (5,977)
  Increase (Decrease)  in OPEB Payable (2,105) (2,105)
Net Cash Provided (Used) 
    by Operating Activities $181,134 $47,611 $181,134

0 0 0
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:   

Federal Grant Proceeds $0 $253,004 $0
Capital Lease Proceeds 51,736 0 51,736

$51,736 $253,004 $51,736

Note: The above funds are all enterprise funds.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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F. Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
as of December 31, 2017 

    
Actuarial Valuation and Measurement Date, December 31, 2016  2017 
    
Membership    
    Number of    
    - Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2  2 
    - Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 14  13 
    - Active employees 11  12 
    - Total 27  27 

    
    
    Covered Payroll $394,493  $379,668 

    
    
Net Pension Liability    
    Total Pension Liability $291,658  $331,641 
    Plan Fiduciary Net Position 238,022  290,962 
    Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $53,636  $40,679 

    
    Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage    
                                                         of Total Pension Liability 81.61%  87.73% 

    
    Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage    
                                                         of Covered Payroll 13.60%  10.71% 

    
Development of the Single Discount Rate    
    Single Discount Rate 6.75%  6.75% 
    Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 6.75%  6.75% 
    Long-Term Municipal Bond Rate 3.78%  3.31% 
    
    Last year ending December 31 in the 100-year projection period    
    for which projected benefit payments are fully funded N/A  N/A 
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SCHEDULE OF PENSION EXPENSE 
1. Total Service Cost $26,956 

2. Interest on the Total Pension Liability 20,253 

3. Changes in Current Period Benefits Including Substantively Automatic Status 0  

4. Employee Contributions (Reduction of Expense) (18,983) 

5. Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (Reduction of Expense) (16,066) 

6. Administrative Expense 171 

7. Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 9 

8. Recognition of Current Year Outflow (Inflow) of Resources-Liabilities 795 

9. Recognition of Current Year Outflow (Inflow) of Resources-Assets (3,394) 

10. Amortization of Prior Year Outflows (Inflows) of Resources-Liabilities 2,812 

11. Amortization of Prior Year Outflows (Inflows) of Resources-Assets 3,066 

12. Total Pension Expense (Income) $15,619 
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SCHEDULE OF OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS - CURRENT AND FUTURE EXPENSE 
           

   Recognition    2017    
A.   Period (or  Total (Inflow)  Recognized  Deferred  
   amortization  or Outflow of  in current  (Inflow)/Outflow  
   year)  Resources  pension expense  in future expense  
           
Due to Liabilities:         
           
Difference in expected         
and actual experience 3.7100  $2,950  $795  $2,155  
[actuarial (gains) or losses]         
           
Change in assumptions 3.7100  $0   $0   $0   
[actuarial (gains) or losses]         
       $795  $2,155  
           
           
Due to Assets:         
           
Difference in projected         
and actual earnings 5.0000  ($16,969)  ($3,394)  ($13,575)  
on pension plan investments         
[actuarial (gains) or losses]     ($3,394)  ($13,575)  
           
Total:       ($11,420)  
           
 Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources, by year, to be recognized in future pension 

B. 
expense as 
follows:         

           
     Net deferred      
     outflows      
     (inflows) of      
     resources      
   2018  $3,200      
   2019  (575)       
   2020  (2,835)      
   2021  (3,393)      
   2022  0       
   Thereafter  0       
   Total  ($3,603)      
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Note to City: 

GASB 68 requires 10 fiscal years of data to be provided in the Schedule of Contributions; the City will build this 
report over the next ID-year period. The data in this schedule is based on the City's fiscal year-end, not the 
valuation/measurement date as provided in other schedules of this report. 

The Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) dollar amount can be calculated by multiplying the City's Full 
Retirement Rate (excludes portion of rate for Supplemental Death Benefits Fund) by the applicable payroll amount 
(for payroll, cities can use "gross earnings" as noted on line 1 of their TMRS-3 "Summary of Monthly Payroll 
Report"). The applicable months for the City's fiscal year are summed to determine the total ADC. Actual 
contribution amounts (employer-portion) remitted to TMRS will equal the "contributions in relation to ADC", with 
the deficiency/(excess) result then calculated. Covered payroll is the sum of the "gross earnings" for the applicable 
months of the TMRS-3 reports. 

For additional detailed information, please reference the TMRS "GASB 68 Employer Reporting Guide." 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
1% Decrease 

5.75% 
Current Single Rate 
Assumption 6.75% 

1% Increase 
7.75% 

$84,104 $40,679 $4,772 
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SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 

These actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of TMRS over 
the four-year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014. They were adopted in 2015 and first used in the 
December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The postretirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity 
Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and 
dated December 31, 2013. In conjunction with these changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, the System 
adopted the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and a one-time change to the amortization 

I.           Economic Assumptions 

A. General Inflation — General Inflation is assumed to be 2.50% per year. 

B. Discount/Crediting Rates 

1. System-wide Investment Return Assumption: 6.75% per year, compounded annually, composed of 
an assumed 2.50% inflation rate and a 4.25% net real rate of return. This rate represents the 
assumed return, net of all investment and administrative expenses. This is the discount rate used 
to value the liabilities of the individual employers, 

2. Assumed discount/crediting rate for Supplemental Disability Benefits Fund and individual employee 
accounts: an annual rate of 5.00% for (1) accumulating prior service credit and updated service 
credit after the valuation date, (2) accumulating the employee current service balances, (3) 
determining the amount of the monthly benefit at future dates of retirement or disability, and (4) 
calculating the actuarial liability of the system-wide Supplemental Disability Benefits Fund. 

C. Overall Payroll Growth — 3.00% per year, which is used to calculate the contribution rates for the 
retirement plan of each participating city as a level percentage of payroll. This represents the expected 
increase in total payroll. This increase rate is solely due to the effect of wage inflation on salaries, with no 
allowance for future membership growth. However, for cities with a decrease in the number of contributing 
members from 2005 to 2()14, the payroll growth is decreased by half the annual percentage decrease in 
the count capped at a 1.0% decrease per year and rounded down to the nearest 0.1%. 
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D. Individual Salary Increases —       
          
 Salary increases are assumed to occur once a year, on January 1. Therefore, the pay used for the period year 

following the valuation date is equal to the reported pay for the prior year, increased by the salary increase 
assumption. Salaries are assumed to increase by the following graduated service-based scale.  

 
 
    Years of      
    Service  Rate (%)    

    1  10.50%    
    2  7.50%    
    3  7.00%    
    4  6.50%    
    5  6.00%    
    6  5.50%    
    7  5.25%    
    8-10  4.75%    
    11  4.50%    
    12-13  4.25%    
    14-16  4.00%    
    17-24  3.75%    
    25+  3.50%    
          
E. Annuity Increase - The Consumer Price Index (CPI) is assumed to be 2.50% per year prospectively. For the 

City of Natalia annual annuity increases of 1.86% are assumed when calculating the TPL.  
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II. Demographic Assumptions 

A. Termination Rates 

1. For the first 10 years of service, the base table rates vary by gender, entry age, and length of 
service. For City of Natalia the base table is then multiplied by a factor of 80.0% based on the 
experience of the city in comparison to the group as a whole. A further multiplier is applied 
depending on an employee's classification: 1) Fire — 63%, 2) Police - 88%, or 3) Other - 108%. 
A sample of the base rates follows: 

 
Males           

  Service 
Age 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
20 0.2920 0.2623 0.2186 0.1932 0.1850 0.1673 0.1529 0.1243 0.1022 0.0816 
25 0.2653 0.2269 0.1812 0.1554 0.1429 0.1267 0.1148 0.1006 0.0926 0.0757 
30 0.2451 0.2052 0.1610 0.1322 0.1079 0.0998 0.0896 0.0774 0.0744 0.0621 
35 0.2505 0.2070 0.1577 0.1265 0.1050 0.0994 0.0848 0.0719 0.0621 0.0567 
40 0.2467 0.2060 0.1561 0.1213 0.1046 0.0943 0.0805 0.0710 0.0601 0.0577 
45 0.2268 0.1934 0.1556 0.1220 0.1053 0.0926 0.0813 0.0711 0.0605 0.0575 
50 0.2078 0.1731 0.1412 0.1149 0.1016 0.0887 0.0807 0.0716 0.0604 0.0578 
55 0.2003 0.1668 0.1265 0.1074 0.0861 0.0864 0.0771 0.0682 0.0609 0.0560 
60 0.1999 0.1542 0.1231 0.1060 0.0790 0.0868 0.0753 0.0683 0.0571 0.0549 
65 0.2000 0.1463 0.1238 0.1063 0.0803 0.0867 0.0757 0.0700 0.0547 0.0551 
70 0.2000 0.1477 0.1237 0.1063 0.0802 0.0867 0.0756 0.0697 0.0551 0.0551 

           
Females           

  Service 
Age 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
20 0.3030 0.2790 0.2221 0.2098 0.1997 0.2021 0.1536 0.1539 0.1564 0.1574 
25 0.2782 0.2409 0.2067 0.1962 0.1710 0.1663 0.1369 0.1352 0.1186 0.1125 
30 0.2574 0.2188 0.1949 0.1762 0.1347 0.1348 0.1276 0.1126 0.0973 0.0804 
35 0.2424 0.2118 0.1805 0.1438 0.1273 0.1238 0.1112 0.1085 0.1000 0.0769 
40 0.2244 0.1993 0.1614 0.1342 0.1295 0.1097 0.1023 0.0924 0.0834 0.0733 
45 0.2191 0.1853 0.1427 0.1337 0.1054 0.1017 0.0894 0.0784 0.0705 0.0725 
50 0.2201 0.1793 0.1347 0.1229 0.0886 0.0881 0.0823 0.0723 0.0675 0.0617 
55 0.2200 0.1738 0.1350 0.1199 0.0834 0.0806 0.0713 0.0705 0.0685 0.0551 
60 0.2200 0.1523 0.1350 0.1172 0.0798 0.0843 0.0646 0.0639 0.0429 0.0379 
65 0.2200 0.1431 0.1350 0.1150 0.0800 0.0857 0.0667 0.0593 0.0276 0.0280 
70 0.2200 0.1447 0.1350 0.1154 0.0800 0.0854 0.0664 0.0601 0.0303 0.0298 
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2. After 10 years of service, base termination rates vary by gender and by the number of years 
remaining until first retirement eligibility. For City of Natalia the base table is then multiplied by a 
factor of 80.0% based on the experience of the city in comparison to the group as a whole. A 
further multiplier is applied depending on an employee's classification: 1) Fire — 52%, 2) Police 
— 79%, or 3) Other — 115%. A sample of the base rates follows: 

Years from     
Retirement Male Female 

1 1.72% 2.20% 
2 2.29% 2.97% 
3 2.71% 3.54% 
4 3.06% 4.01% 
5 3.35% 4.41% 
6 3.61% 4.77% 
7 3.85% 5.10% 
8 4.07% 5.40% 
9 4.28% 5.68% 

10 4.47% 5.94% 
11 4.65% 6.19% 
12 4.82% 6.43% 
13 4.98% 6.66% 
14 5.14% 6.87% 
15 5.29% 7.08% 

Termination rates end at first eligibility for retirement 

B. Forfeiture Rates (Withdrawal of Member Deposits from TMRS) for vested members vary by age and 
employer match, and they are expressed as a percentage of the termination rates shown in (A). The 
withdrawal rates for cities with a 2-to-1 match are shown below. 4% is added to the rates for 1 ½-to-1 
cities, and 8% is added for 1-to-1 cities. 

  Percent of Terminating 
  Employees Choosing to 

Age Take a Refund 
25 41.2% 
30 41.2% 
35 41.2% 
40 38.0% 
45 32.6% 
50 27.1% 
55 21.7% 

 
Forfeiture rates end at first eligibility for retirement. 
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C. Service Retirees and Beneficiary Mortality Rates 

For calculating the actuarial liability and the retirement contribution rates, the Gender-distinct 
RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates 
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. Based on the size of the city, rates are 
multiplied by an additional factor of 100.0%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis 
by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. 

D. Disabled Annuitant Mortality Rates 

For calculating the actuarial liability and the retirement contribution rates, the Gender-distinct 
RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates 
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males 
and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the impairment for 
younger members who become disabled, the rates are projected on a fully generational basis by 
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor. 

E. Pre-Retirement Mortality 

For calculating the actuarial liability and the retirement contribution rates, the Gender-distinct 
RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates 
multiplied by 54.5% and female rates multiplied by 51.5%. The rates are projected on a fully 
generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. 

F. Annuity Purchase Rates 
For determining the amount of the monthly benefit at the time of retirement for both healthy and 
disabled annuitants, the annuity purchase rates (APRs) for 2014 are based on the UP-1984 Table 
with an age setback of two years for retirees and an age setback of eight years for beneficiaries. 
Beginning in 2027 the APRs will be based on a unisex blend of the RP-2000 Combined Healthy 
Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment for males and females with both male and female 
rates multiplied by 107.5% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB. For 
members, a unisex blend of 70% of the males table and 30% of the female table is used, while 
30% of the male table and 70% of the female table is used for beneficiaries. From 2015 through 
2026, the fully generational APRs will be phased into. 
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G. Disability Rates 
Age Males & 

Females 
20 
25 
30 
35 
40 
45 
50 
55 
60 
65 

0.000004 
0.000025 
0.000099 
0.000259 
0.000494 
0.000804 
0.001188 
0.001647 
0.002180 
0.002787 

H. Service Retirement Rates, applied to both Active and Inactive Members 

The base table rates vary by gender, entry age group, and age. For members under age 62, these 
base rates are then multiplied by 2 factors based on 1) employee contribution rate and employer 
match and 2) if the city has a recurring COLA. 

  Males Females 
  Entry Age Groups Entry Age Groups 
  Ages 32 Ages Ages 48 Ages 32 Ages Ages 48 

Age & Under 33 - 47 & Over & Under 33 - 47 & Over 
40-44 0.06 - - 0.06 - - 
45-49 0.06 - - 0.06 - - 
50-52 0.08 - - 0.08 - - 

53 0.08 0.10 - 0.08 0.10 - 
54 0.08 0.10 - 0.11 0.10 - 

55-59 0.14 0.10 - 0.11 0.10 - 
60 0.20 0.15 0.10 0.14 0.15 0.10 
61 0.25 0.30 0.20 0.28 0.26 0.20 
62 0.32 0.25 0.12 0.28 0.17 0.12 
63 0.32 0.23 0.12 0.28 0.17 0.12 
64 0.32 0.35 0.20 0.28 0.22 0.20 
65 0.32 0.32 0.20 0.28 0.27 0.20 

66-69 0.22 0.22 0.17 0.22 0.22 0.17 
70-74 0.20 0.22 0.25 0.22 0.22 0.25 
75 and           

over 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
 
Note: For cities without a 20-year/any age retirement provision, the rates for entry ages 32 and under 
are loaded by 20% for ages below 60. 
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Plan Design Factors Applied to Base Retirement Rates 
  Employee Contribution Rate 
Employer Match 5% 6% 7% 

1-1 0.75 0.80 0.84 
1.5-1 0.81 0.86 0.92 
2-1 0.86 0.93 1.00 

Recurring COLA: 100%  

No Recurring COLA: 90% 

Ill. Methods and Assumptions 

A. Valuation of Assets — The actuarial value of assets is based on the market value of assets with a ten-
year phase-in of actual investment return in excess of (less than) expected investment income. Offsetting 
unrecognized gains and losses are immediately recognized, with the shortest remaining bases 
recognized first and the net remaining bases continue to be recognized on their original timeframe. The 
actuarial value of assets is further adjusted by 33% of any difference between the initial value and a 15% 
corridor around the market value of assets, if necessary, 

B. Actuarial Cost Method: The actuarial cost method being used is known as the Entry Age Normal Actuarial 
Cost Method. The Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method develops the annual cost of the Plan in two 
parts: that attributable to benefits accruing in the current year, known as the normal cost, and that due to 
service earned prior to the current year, known as the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability. The normal cost and the actuarial accrued liability are calculated individually for each member. 
The normal cost rate for an employee is the contribution rate which, if applied to a member's 
compensation throughout their period of anticipated covered service with the municipality, would be 
sufficient to meet all benefits payable on their behalf. The normal cost is calculated using an entry age 
based on benefit service with the current city. If a member has additional time-only vesting service 
through service with other TMRS cities or other public agencies, they retain this for determination of 
benefit eligibility and decrement rates. The salary-weighted average of these rates is the total normal 
cost rate. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability reflects the difference between the portion of projected 
benefits attributable to service credited prior to the valuation date and assets already accumulated. The 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is paid off in accordance with a specified amortization procedure 
outlined in C below. 
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C. Amortization Policy: For "underfunded" cities with twenty or more employees, the amortization as of the 
valuation date is a level percentage of payroll over a closed period using the process of "laddering". 
Bases that existed prior to this valuation continue to be amortized on their original schedule. Beginning 
January 1, 2016, all new experience losses are amortized over individual periods of not more than 25 
years. Previously, some cities amortized their losses over a 30-year period. New gains (including lump 
sum contributions) are offset against and amortized over the same period as the current largest 
outstanding loss base for the specific City which in turn decreases contribution rate volatility. 

Once a City reaches an "overfunded" status, all prior non-ad hoc bases are erased and the surplus for 
overfunded cities is amortized over a 25-year open period. 

Ad hoc benefit enhancements are amortized over individual periods using a level dollar policy. The period 
will be based on the minimum of 15 years or the current life expectancy of the covered group. 

For the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation, there was a one-time change in the amortization policy 
for underfunded cities implemented in conjunction with the changes to the assumptions and cost method 
to minimize rate volatility associated with these changes. An initial ARC was developed using the 
methodology described above. For cities with a decrease in the rate compared to the rate calculated prior 
to changes, the amortization period for all non-ad hoc bases was shortened enough to keep the rates 
stable (if possible). Cities with an increase of more than 0.50% were allowed to extend the amortization 
periods for non-ad hoc bases up to 30 years to keep the full contribution rate from increasing. For cities 
with an increase of 0.50% or less, the amortization periods for all non-ad hoc bases could be extended 
to 25 years to keep the rate from increasing. The amortization period calculated in the prior steps was 
then rounded up to the nearest integer to calculate the final full contribution rate. 

D. Small City Methodology For cities with fewer than twenty employees, more conservative methods and 
assumptions are used. First, lower termination rates are used for smaller cities, with maximum multipliers 
of 75% for employers with less than 6 members, 85% for employers with 6 to 10 members, 100% for 
employers with 11 to 15 members, and 115% for employers with less than 100 members. 

There is also a load on the life expectancy for employers with less than 15 active members. The life 
expectancy will be loaded by decreasing the mortality rates by 1% for every active member less than 15. 
For example, an employer with 5 active members will have the baseline mortality tables multiplied by 
90% (10 active members times 1%). 

For underfunded plans, the maximum amortization period for amortizing gains and losses is decreased 
from current levels by 1 year for each active member less than the 20-member threshold. For example, 
an employer with 8 active members and a current maximum amortization period of 25 will use (25-(20-
8)) = 13-year amortization period for the gain or loss in that year's valuation. Under this policy, the lowest 
amortization period will be 25-(20-1) = 6 years. Once the plan is overfunded, the amortization period will 
revert back to the standard 25 years. 

 

 

 



 

58 
 

 

IV.        Other Assumptions 

1. Valuation payroll (used for determining the amortization contribution rate): An exponential average of 
the actual salaries paid during the prior fiscal years, with 33% weight given to the most recent year 
and 67% weight given to the expected payroll for the previous fiscal year, moved forward with one 
year's payroll growth rate and adjusted for changes in population. 

2. Individual salaries used to project benefits: For members with more than three years of service, actual 
salaries from the past three fiscal years are used to determine the USC final average salary as of the 
valuation date. For future salaries, this three-year average is projected forward with two years of salary 
scale to create the salary for the year following the valuation. This value is then projected with normal 
salary scales. 

3. Timing of benefit payments: Benefit payments are assumed to be made in the middle of the month. 
Although TMRS benefits are paid at the end of the month, eligibility for that payment is determined at 
the beginning of the month, A middle of month payment approximates the impact of the combination 
of eligibility determination and actual payment timing, 

4. Percent married: 100% of the employees are assumed to be married. 

5. Age difference: Male members are assumed to be three years older than their spouses, and female 
members are assumed to be three years younger than their spouses. 

6. Optional Forms: Healthy members are assumed to choose a life only benefit when they retire. 
Disabled members are assumed to select a 50% Joint and Survivor option when they retire. 

7. Percent electing annuity on death (when eligible): For vested members not eligible for retirement, 75% 
of the spouses of male members and 70% of the spouses of female members are assumed to 
commence an immediate benefit in lieu of a deferred annuity or a refund. Those not electing an 
immediate benefit are assumed to take a refund. All of the spouses of married participants who die 
after becoming eligible for a retirement benefit are assumed to elect an annuity that commences 
immediately. 

8. Partial Lump Sum Utilization: It is assumed that each member at retirement will withdraw 40% of their 
eligible account balance. 

9. Inactive Population: All non-vested members of a city are assumed to take an immediate refund if 
they are not contributing members in another city. Vested members not contributing in another city 
are assumed to take a deferred retirement benefit, except for those who have terminated in the past 
12 months for whom one year of forfeiture probability is assumed. The forfeiture rates for inactive 
members of a city who are contributing members in another city are equal to the probability of 
termination multiplied by the forfeiture rates shown in Il(A) and "(B) respectively. These rates are 
applied each year until retirement eligibility. Once a member is retirement eligible, they are assumed 
to commence benefits based on the service retirement rates shown in Il(H). 

10. There will be no recoveries once disabled. 
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11. No surviving spouse will remarry and there will be no children's benefit. 

12. Decrement timing: Decrements of all types are assumed to occur mid-year. 

13. Eligibility testing: Eligibility for benefits is determined based upon the age nearest birthday and service 
nearest whole year on the date the decrement is assumed to occur. 

14. Decrement relativity: Decrement rates are used directly from the experience study, without adjustment 
for multiple decrement table effects. 

15. Incidence of Contributions: Contributions are assumed to be received continuously throughout the 
year based upon the computed percent of payroll shown in this report, and the actual payroll payable 
at the time contributions are made. 

16. Benefit Service: All members are assumed to accrue 1 year of eligibility service each year. 

17. The decrement rates for service-related decrements are based on total TMRS eligibility service. 
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V.   Participant Data 

Participant data was supplied in electronic text files. There were separate files for (i) active and inactive 
members, and (ii) members and beneficiaries receiving benefits. 

The data for active members included birthdate, gender, service with the current city and total vesting service, 
salary, employee contribution account balances, as well as the data used in the next calculation of the Updated 
Service Credit (USC). For retired members and beneficiaries, the data included date of birth, gender, spouse's 
date of birth (where applicable), amount of monthly benefit, date of retirement, form of payment code, and 
aggregate increase in the CPI that will be used in the next calculation of the cost of living adjustment. 

To the extent possible we have made use of all available data fields in the calculation of the liabilities stated in 
this report. Actual CPI is used to model the wear-away effect or "catch-up" when a city changes its COLA 
provisions. Adjustments are made for members who have service both in a city with "20 and out" retirement 
eligibility and one that hasn't adopted it to calculate the earliest possible retirement date, 

Salary supplied for the current year was based on the annualized earnings for the year preceding the valuation 
date. 

Assumptions were made to correct for missing, bad, or inconsistent data. These had no material impact on the 
results presented. 
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Amortization Schedule                
Deferred (Inflows)/Outflows of Resources              
                  
 Remaining  Total               
 Recognition  Remaining  Measurement Year 

 period (or  (Inflow)               

 amortization  
or Outflow 

of               
 years)  Resources  2017  2018  2019  2020  2021  2022  Thereafter 

                  
Due to                  
Liabilities:                  
                  
difference in experiences (inflows)/outflows              
                  

2017 3.7100  $2,950   $795   $795   $795   $565   $0   $0   $0  

2016 2.5900  (2,708)  (1,046)  (1,046)  (616)  0   0   0   0  

2015 1.8400  4,577   2,487   2,090   0   0   0   0   0  

2014 1.0000  (639)  (639)  0   0   0   0   0   0  

                  
   Total  $1,597    $1,839    $179    $565    $0    $0    $0  

                  
change in assumptions (inflows)/outflows              
                  

2015 1.8400  $3,697   $2,010   $1,687   $0   $0   $0   $0   $0  

                  
   Total  $2,010    $1,687    $0    $0    $0    $0    $0  

                  
Due to Assets:                  
                  
excess investment returns (inflows)/outflows               
                  

2017 5.0000  ($16,969)  ($3,394)  ($3,394)  ($3,394)  ($3,394)  ($3,393)  $0   $0  

2016 4.0000  (27)  (7)  (7)  (7)  (6)  0   0   0  

2015 3.0000  7,945   2,649   2,649   2,647   0   0   0   0  

2014 2.0000  850   424   426   0   0   0   0   0  

                  
   Total  ($328)   ($326)   ($754)   ($3,400)   ($3,393)   $0    $0  
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G. GASB 75 Information 

Actuarial and Financial Schedules 
        

As of Measurement Date of December 31, 2017 
        

Actuarial Valuation and Measurement Date, December 31,  2017 

        

Membership   

Number of   

   -Inactive employees currently receiving benefits  2 

   -Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits  3 

   -Active employees  12 

   -Total  17 

        

Covered Payroll  $379,668 

        

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability   

    Total OPEB Liability - beginning of year  $20,304 

    Changes for the year   

       Service cost  1,595 

       Interest on Total OPEB Liability  796 

       Changes of benefit term  0  

       Differences between expected and actual experience  0  

       Changes in assumptions or other inputs  2,248 

       Benefit payments  (76) 

    Net changes  4,563 

    Total OPEB Liability - end of year  $24,867 

        

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll  6.55% 
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Summary of Actuarial Assumptions:  

Inflation  2.5%  

Salary increases  3.50% to 10.5% including inflation  

Discount rate*  3.31%  

Retirees’ share of benefit-related costs  $0  
Administrative expenses  All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and 

accounted for under reporting requirements under GASB Statement 
No. 68.  

Mortality rates – service retirees  RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar  
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates 
multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully generational basis with 
scale BB.  

Mortality rates – disabled retirees  RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar  
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates 
multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and 
females.  The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with 
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 
3% floor.  

  
Note:  The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014.   

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  

  
1% Decrease (2.31%)  

Current Discount Rate 
(3.31%)  1% Increase (4.31%)  

Total OPEB liability  $30,772 $24,867 $20,338 
  

OPEB Expense:    

Service cost   $1,595 

Interest on total OPEB Liability  796 

Changes in benefit terms  0  

Employer administrative costs  0  

Recognition of deferred outflows/inflows of resources:  

    Differences between expected and actual experience 0  

    Changes in assumptions or other inputs  356 

Total OPEB expense   $2,747  
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Deferred (Inflows)/Outflows of Resources:  
  Deferred (Inflows) of 

Resources  
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources  

Differences between expected and actual experience  $   0   $   0   

Changes in assumptions and other inputs  0    1,892   

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date   N/A  [CITY TO PROVIDE]  

Total (excluding contributions made subsequent to measurement 
date)  $   0   $  1,892  
Note:  The City shall include contributions made subsequent to the measurement date through the City’s fiscal year end 
as deferred outflows of resources.  Please see page 7 for retiree rates and a description of the calculation.  
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Schedule of Outflows and Inflows - Current and future expense  
       
       
   Recognition  2017  

   Period (or Total (Inflow) Recognized Deferred 
   amortization or Outflow of in current OPEB (Inflow)/Outflow 
   years) Resources expense in future expense 
       

Due to Liabilities:     
      
Difference in expected     
and actual experience 6.3200 $0  $0  $0  
[actuarial (gains) or 
losses]     
     
Change in assumptions 6.3200 $2,248 $356 $1,892 
[actuarial (gains) or 
losses]     
     
Contributions made 
subsequent  [Provided by [Provided by [Provided by 
to measurement date  City] City] City] 

       
Total (excluding city 
provided     
contributions made 
subsequent     
to measurement date):    $1,892 

       
Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources, by year, to be recognized in 
future OPEB expense (excluding city-provided contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date): 
    Net deferred   
    outflows   
    (inflows) of   
    resources   
   2018 $356    
   2019 356   
   2020 356   
   2021 356   
   2022 356   
   Thereafter 112   
    $1,892    
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Amortization Schedule - Deferred (Inflows)/Outflows of Resources     
           
  Remaining Total        
  Recognition Remaining        
  period (or (Inflow)        
  amortization or Outflow of        
  years) Resources 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter 
           
difference in experience (inflows)/outflows       
           
 2017 6.3200 $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  
           

   Total $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  
           
change in assumptions (inflows)/outflows       
           
 2017 6.3200 $2,248  $356 $356 $356 $356 $356 $356 $112  
           

   Total $356 $356 $356 $356 $356 $356 $112 
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Schedule of Contributions - (Retiree-only portion of the rate, for OPEB):       
          

Plan/Calendar Year  Total SDB 
Contribution (Rate)  

Retiree Portion of SDB 
Contribution (Rate)  

2017  0.18%  0.02%  
2018  0.20%  0.02%  

  
Note 1:  Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan, benefit payments are treated as being equal to the 
employer’s yearly contributions for retirees.  
  
Note 2:  In order to determine the retiree portion of the City’s Supplemental Death Benefit Plan contributions (that which is 
considered OPEB), the City should perform the following calculation:  
  Total covered payroll * Retiree Portion of SDB Contribution (Rate)  
  
Consideration should be given to the time period of contributions incurred (i.e., City’s fiscal year vs.  
calendar year) to ensure the proper contribution rate is utilized in the above calculation.      
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Actuarial Assumptions  
These actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of TMRS over the 
four-year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014.  They were adopted in 2015 and first used in the 
December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation.  The post-retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity 
Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated 
December 31, 2013.    
I.  Economic Assumptions  

A. General Inflation – General Inflation is assumed to be 2.50% per year.  
  
B. Discount Rates – Because the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund is considered an unfunded trust under 

GASB Statement No. 75, the relevant discount rate for calculating the Total OPEB Liability is based on the 
Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of the measurement date.  

  
C. Individual Salary Increases – Salary increases are assumed to occur once a year, on January 1. Therefore, 

the pay used for the period year following the valuation date is equal to the reported pay for the prior year, 
increased by the salary increase assumption.  Salaries are assumed to increase by the following graduated 
service-based scale.  

Years of   

Service  Rate (%) 
1  10.50% 
2  7.50% 
3  7.00% 
4  6.50% 
5  6.00% 
6  5.50% 
7  5.25% 

8-10  4.75% 
11  4.50% 

12-13  4.25% 
14-16  4.00% 
17-24  3.75% 
25+  3.50% 
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II.  Demographic Assumptions  

A. Termination Rates   
  
1. For the first 10 years of service, the base table rates vary by gender, entry age, and length of service. 

For City of Natalia the base table is then multiplied by a factor of 80.0% based on the experience of 
the city in comparison to the group as a whole.  A further multiplier is applied depending on an 
employee’s classification:  1) Fire – 63%, 2) Police – 88%, or 3) Other – 108%.  A sample of the base 
rates follows:  

  

Females           
  Service 

Age 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
20 0.3030 0.2790 0.2221 0.2098 0.1997 0.2021 0.1536 0.1539 0.1564 0.1574 
25 0.2782 0.2409 0.2067 0.1962 0.1710 0.1663 0.1369 0.1352 0.1186 0.1125 
30 0.2574 0.2188 0.1949 0.1762 0.1347 0.1348 0.1276 0.1126 0.0973 0.0804 
35 0.2424 0.2118 0.1805 0.1438 0.1273 0.1238 0.1112 0.1085 0.1000 0.0769 
40 0.2244 0.1993 0.1614 0.1342 0.1295 0.1097 0.1023 0.0924 0.0834 0.0733 
45 0.2191 0.1853 0.1427 0.1337 0.1054 0.1017 0.0894 0.0784 0.0705 0.0725 
50 0.2201 0.1793 0.1347 0.1229 0.0886 0.0881 0.0823 0.0723 0.0675 0.0617 
55 0.2200 0.1738 0.1350 0.1199 0.0834 0.0806 0.0713 0.0705 0.0685 0.0551 
60 0.2200 0.1523 0.1350 0.1172 0.0798 0.0843 0.0646 0.0639 0.0429 0.0379 
65 0.2200 0.1431 0.1350 0.1150 0.0800 0.0857 0.0667 0.0593 0.0276 0.0280 
70 0.2200 0.1447 0.1350 0.1154 0.0800 0.0854 0.0664 0.0601 0.0303 0.0298 

 
  
 
 
  

Males           
  Service 

Age 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
20 0.2920 0.2623 0.2186 0.1932 0.1850 0.1673 0.1529 0.1243 0.1022 0.0816 
25 0.2653 0.2269 0.1812 0.1554 0.1429 0.1267 0.1148 0.1006 0.0926 0.0757 
30 0.2451 0.2052 0.1610 0.1322 0.1079 0.0998 0.0896 0.0774 0.0744 0.0621 
35 0.2505 0.2070 0.1577 0.1265 0.1050 0.0994 0.0848 0.0719 0.0621 0.0567 
40 0.2467 0.2060 0.1561 0.1213 0.1046 0.0943 0.0805 0.0710 0.0601 0.0577 
45 0.2268 0.1934 0.1556 0.1220 0.1053 0.0926 0.0813 0.0711 0.0605 0.0575 
50 0.2078 0.1731 0.1412 0.1149 0.1016 0.0887 0.0807 0.0716 0.0604 0.0578 
55 0.2003 0.1668 0.1265 0.1074 0.0861 0.0864 0.0771 0.0682 0.0609 0.0560 
60 0.1999 0.1542 0.1231 0.1060 0.0790 0.0868 0.0753 0.0683 0.0571 0.0549 
65 0.2000 0.1463 0.1238 0.1063 0.0803 0.0867 0.0757 0.0700 0.0547 0.0551 
70 0.2000 0.1477 0.1237 0.1063 0.0802 0.0867 0.0756 0.0697 0.0551 0.0551 
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2. After 10 years of service, base termination rates vary by gender and by the number of years remaining 

until first retirement eligibility. For City of Natalia the base table is then multiplied by a factor of 80.0% 
based on the experience of the city in comparison to the group as a whole. A further multiplier is 
applied depending on an employee’s classification:  1) Fire – 52%, 2) Police – 79%, or 3) Other – 
115%. A sample of the base rates follows:  

  
 

Years from Retirement  Male  Female  
1  1.72%  2.20%  
2  2.29%  2.97%  
3  2.71%  3.54%  
4  3.06%  4.01%  
5  3.35%  4.41%  
6  3.61%  4.77%  
7  3.85%  5.10%  
8  4.07%  5.40%  
9  4.28%  5.68%  
10  4.47%  5.94%  
11  4.65%  6.19%  
12  4.82%  6.43%  
13  4.98%  6.66%  
14  5.14%  6.87%  
15  5.29%  7.08%  

Termination rates end at first eligibility for retirement  
B. Forfeiture Rates (Withdrawal of Member Deposits from TMRS) for vested members vary by age and 

employer match, and they are expressed as a percentage of the termination rates shown in (A).  The 
withdrawal rates for cities with a 2-to-1 match are shown below.  4% is added to the rates for 1½-to-1 cities, 
and 8% is added for 1-to-1 cities.  

  

Age  

Percent of Terminating  
Employees Choosing to  

Take a Refund  

25  41.2%  
30  41.2%  
35  41.2%  
40  38.0%  
45  32.6%  
50  27.1%  
55  21.7%  

Forfeiture rates end at first eligibility for retirement.  
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C. Service Retirees and Beneficiary Mortality Rates  

  
For calculating the OPEB liability and the OPEB contribution rates, the Gender-distinct RP2000 Combined 
Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109% and 
female rates multiplied by 103%. Based on the size of the city, rates are multiplied by an additional factor 
of 97.0%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality 
improvements.  
  

D. Disabled Annuitant Mortality Rates  
  
For calculating the OPEB liability and the OPEB contribution rates, the Gender-distinct RP2000 Combined 
Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109% and 
female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set forward for both males and females.  In addition, a 3% 
minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become 
disabled.    The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality 
improvements subject to the 3% floor.  

  
E. Pre-Retirement Mortality   

  
For calculating the OPEB liability and the contribution rates, the Gender-distinct RP2000 Combined 
Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 54.5% and 
female rates multiplied by 51.5%.  The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to 
account for future mortality improvements.  

  
F. Disability Rates  

  
Age  Males &  

Females  
20  0.000004  
25  0.000025  
30  0.000099  
35  0.000259  
40  0.000494  
45  0.000804  
50  0.001188  
55  0.001647  
60  0.002180  
65  0.002787  
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G. Service Retirement Rates, applied to both Active and Inactive Members  
  

The base table rates vary by gender, entry age group, and age.  For members under age 62, these base 
rates are then multiplied by 2 factors based on 1) employee contribution rate and employer match and 2) 
if the city has a recurring COLA.  
  
  Males  Females  
  Entry Age Groups  Entry Age Groups  
  Ages 32  Ages   Ages 48  Ages 32  Ages   Ages 48  

Age  & Under  33 – 47  & Over  & Under  33 – 47  & Over  
40-44  0.06  -  -  0.06  -  -  
45-49  0.06  -  -  0.06  -  -  
50-52  0.08  -  -  0.08  -  -  

53  0.08  0.10  -  0.08  0.10  -  
54  0.08  0.10  -  0.11  0.10  -  

55-59  0.14  0.10  -  0.11  0.10  -  
60  0.20  0.15  0.10  0.14  0.15  0.10  
61  0.25  0.30  0.20  0.28  0.26  0.20  
62  0.32  0.25  0.12  0.28  0.17  0.12  
63  0.32  0.23  0.12  0.28  0.17  0.12  
64  0.32  0.35  0.20  0.28  0.22  0.20  
65  0.32  0.32  0.20  0.28  0.27  0.20  

66-69  0.22  0.22  0.17  0.22  0.22  0.17  
70-74  0.20  0.22  0.25  0.22  0.22  0.25  

75 and  
over  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  1.00  

  
Note:  For cities without a 20-year/any age retirement provision, the rates for entry ages 32 and under 
are loaded by 20% for ages below 60.  
  
Plan Design Factors Applied to Base Retirement Rates  
  

   Employee Contribution Rate  
Employer Match  5%  6%  7%  

1 – 1  0.75   0.80   0.84   
1.5 – 1  0.81   0.86   0.92   
2 – 1  0.86   0.93   1.00   

 Recurring COLA:  100%   
 No Recurring COLA:    90%      
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III.  Methods and Assumptions  

A. Valuation of Assets – For purposes of calculating the Total OPEB Liability, the plan is considered to be 
unfunded and therefore no assets are accumulated for OPEB.  

  
B. Actuarial Cost Method: The actuarial cost method being used is known as the Entry Age Normal Actuarial 

Cost Method. The Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method develops the annual cost of the Plan in two parts: 
that attributable to benefits accruing in the current year, known as the normal cost, and that due to service 
earned prior to the current year, known as the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The 
normal cost and the actuarial accrued liability are calculated individually for each member. The normal cost 
rate for an employee is the contribution rate which, if applied to a member’s compensation throughout their 
period of anticipated covered service with the municipality, would be sufficient to meet all benefits payable 
on their behalf. The normal cost is calculated using an entry age based on benefit service with the current 
city. If a member has additional time-only vesting service through service with other TMRS cities or other 
public agencies, they retain this for determination of benefit eligibility and decrement rates. The salary-
weighted average of these rates is the total normal cost rate. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability reflects 
the difference between the portion of projected benefits attributable to service credited prior to the valuation 
date and assets already accumulated.   

  
C. Supplemental Death Benefit – The contribution rate for the Supplemental Death Benefit (SDB) is equal to 

the expected benefit payments during the upcoming year divided by the annualized pay of current active 
members and is calculated separately for actives and retirees. Due to the significant reserve in the 
Supplemental Death Fund, the SDB rate for retiree coverage is currently only one-third of the total term cost.  

  
IV.  Other Assumptions  

1. Inactive Population: All non-vested members of a city are assumed to take an immediate refund if they are 
not contributing members in another city. Vested members not contributing in another city are assumed to 
take a deferred retirement benefit, except for those who have terminated in the past 12 months for whom one 
year of forfeiture probability is assumed. The forfeiture rates for inactive members of a city who are 
contributing members in another city are equal to the probability of termination multiplied by the forfeiture 
rates shown in II(A) and II(B) respectively. These rates are applied each year until retirement eligibility. Once 
a member is retirement eligible, they are assumed to commence benefits based on the service retirement 
rates shown in II(G).  

2. There will be no recoveries once disabled.  

3. Decrement timing: Decrements of all types are assumed to occur mid-year.  

 

 

 

 

 



74 
 

  
4. Eligibility testing: Eligibility for benefits is determined based upon the age nearest birthday and service 

nearest whole year on the date the decrement is assumed to occur.  

5. Decrement relativity: Decrement rates are used directly from the experience study, without adjustment for 
multiple decrement table effects.  

6. Incidence of Contributions: Contributions are assumed to be received continuously throughout the year 
based upon the computed percent of payroll shown in this report, and the actual payroll payable at the time 
contributions are made.  

7. Benefit Service: All members are assumed to accrue 1 year of eligibility service each year.  

8. The decrement rates for service-related decrements are based on total TMRS eligibility service.  

V.  Participant Data  

Participant data was supplied in electronic text files. There were separate files for (i) active and inactive 
members, and (ii) members and beneficiaries receiving benefits.  

The data for active members included birthdate, gender, service with the current city and total vesting service 
and salary.  For retired members, the data included date of birth, gender and date of retirement.  

To the extent possible we have made use of all available data fields in the calculation of the liabilities stated in 
this report.  Adjustments are made for members who have service both in a city with “20 and out” retirement 
eligibility and one that hasn’t adopted it to calculate the earliest possible retirement date.  

Salary supplied for the current year was based on the annualized earnings for the year preceding the valuation 
date.    

Assumptions were made to correct for missing, bad, or inconsistent data. These had no material impact on the 
results presented. 
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  Glossary of Terms  

  
Actuarial Assumptions  These assumptions are estimates of future experience with respect to rates of 

mortality, disability, turnover, retirement, rate or rates of investment income and 
compensation increases.  Actuarial assumptions are generally based on past 
experience, often modified for projected changes in conditions.  Economic 
assumptions (compensation increases, payroll growth, inflation and investment 
return) consist of an underlying real rate of return plus an assumption for a long-
term average rate of inflation.  
  

Actuarial Cost Method   A mathematical budgeting procedure for allocating the dollar amount of the 
actuarial present value of the benefits between future normal cost and actuarial 
accrued liability.  The actuarial cost method may also be referred to as the 
actuarial funding method.  
  

Actuarial Gain (Loss)  The difference in liabilities between actual experience and expected experience 
during the period between two actuarial valuations is the gain (loss) on the 
accrued liabilities.  
  

Actuarial Present Value (APV)  The amount of funds currently required to provide a payment or series of 
payments in the future.  The present value is determined by discounting future 
payments at predetermined rates of interest and probabilities of payment.  
  

Actuarial Valuation  The actuarial valuation report determines, as of the actuarial valuation date, the 
service cost, total OPEB liability, and related actuarial present value of projected 
benefit payments for OPEB.  
  

Actuarially Determined Contribution 
(ADC)  

A calculated contribution into a defined benefit OPEB plan for the reporting period, 
most often determined based on the funding policy of the plan.  
  

Covered Payroll  
  

The payroll of employees that are provided with OPEB.  
  

Deferred Inflows and Outflows  The deferred inflows and outflows of OPEB resources are amounts used under 
GASB Statement No. 75 in developing the annual OPEB expense.  Deferred 
inflows and outflows arise with differences between expected and actual 
experiences or changes of assumptions.  The portion of these amounts not 
included in OPEB expense should be included in the deferred inflows or outflows 
of resources.  
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Glossary of Terms  

Discount Rate  
  

The discount rate is the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general 
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher (or 
equivalent quality on another rating scale).   
  

Entry Age Normal Actuarial  
Cost Method (EAN)  
  

A method under which the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each 
individual included in an actuarial valuation is allocated on a level basis over the 
earnings or service of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age(s). 
The portion of this actuarial present value allocated to a valuation year is called 
the normal cost.  The portion of this actuarial present value not provided for at a 
valuation date by the actuarial present value of future normal costs is called the 
Actuarial Accrued Liability.  
  

GASB  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is an organization that exists in 
order to promulgate accounting standards for governmental entities.  

     
Other Postemployment  
Benefits (OPEB)  
  

Benefits (such as death benefits, life insurance, disability, and long-term care) that 
are paid in the period after employment and that are provided separately from a 
pension plan, as well as healthcare benefits paid in the period after employment, 
regardless of the manner in which they are provided. OPEB does not include 
termination benefits or termination payments for sick leave.  
  

Real Rate of Return  
  

The rate of return on an investment after adjustment to eliminate inflation.  
  

Service Costs  
  

The portions of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that are 
attributed to valuation years.  
  

Total OPEB Liability  
  

The portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that is 
attributed to past periods of employee service in conformity with the requirements 
of this Statement.   
  

Total OPEB Expense  The total OPEB expense is the sum of the following items:   
1. Service Cost  
2. Interest on the Total OPEB Liability  
3. Current-Period Benefit Changes  
4. Administrative Expense  
5. Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to Liabilities  
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A. Total  pension liability    
    
 2017  2016  2015  

1. Service Cost $26,956  $28,009  $26,124  
2.  Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 20,253  18,176  15,624  
3.  Changes of benefit terms 0  0  0  
4.  Difference between expected and actual experience 2,950  (3,754) 9,551  
5.  Changes of assumptions 0  0  7,717  
6.   Benefit payments, including refunds     
                                of employee contributions  (10,176) (12,090) (15,662) 
7.  Net change in total pension liability 39,983  30,341  43,354  
8.  Total pension liability -- beginning 291,658  261,317  217,963  
9.  Total pension liability - ending 331,641  291,658  261,317  

    
    

B.   Plan fiduciary  net position    
    

I.  Contributions - employer 11,277  9,147  10,578  
2.    Contributions - employee 18,983  19,725  19,096  
3.    Net investment income 33,035  14,032  285  
4.    Benefit payments, including refunds     
                                of employee contributions  (10,176) (12,090) (15,662) 
5.    Administrative  Expense (171) (158) (174) 
6.    Other (9) (9) (9) 
7.    Net change in plan fiduciary net position 52,940  30,647  14,114  
8.    Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 238,022  207,375  193,259  
9.    Plan fiduciary net position - ending* 290,962  238,022  207,373  

    
C.  Net pension  liability   (A.9 - B.9) $40,679  $53,636  $53,944  

                           
D.  Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage     
                 of the total pension  liability   (B.9 / A.9) 87.73% 81.61% 79.36% 

    
E.  Covered-employee payroll (B.9 / A.9) $379,668  $394,493  $381,929  

    
F. Net pension liability as a percentage     

                         of covered employee payroll  (C/E) 10.71% 13.60% 14.12% 
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
Last 10 Fiscal Years (will ultimately be displayed) 

     
    2014 2015 2016 2017   
          
Actuarially Determined Contribution  $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx   
          
Contributions in relation to the 
actuarially        
determined 
contribution   $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx   
          
Contribution deficiency (excess)  $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx   
Covered payroll   $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx $ xxx,xxx   
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll xx.xx% xx.xx% xx.xx% xx.xx%   
     

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
Valuation Date:  
Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 
 and become effective in January 13 months later. 
  
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:     
    
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed 
Remaining Amortization 21 years 
Period  
Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor 
Inflation 2.5% 
Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation 
Investment Rate of Return 6.75% 
Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of 
 benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience 
 study of the period 2010-2014. 
Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male 
 rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and 
 projected on a fully generated basis with scale BB 
  
Other Information:  
Notes There were no benefit changes during the year. 
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OPEB Retirement System Information: 

OPEB Plans  
  

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability  
  

Changes for the year 2017  
1. Service Cost $1,595  
2.  Interest on Total OPEB Liability 796  
3.  Changes of benefit terms 0  
4.  Difference between expected and actual experience 0  
5.  Changes in assumptions or other inputs 2,248  
6.   Benefit payments (76) 
7.  Net changes 4,563  
Total OPEB Liability - beginning of year 20,304  
Total OPEB Liability - end of year $24,867  

  

  

E.  Covered-employee payroll (B.9 / A.9) $379,668  
  

F. Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 6.55% 



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

DEBT CAPITAL
SPECIAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS

Municipal NPD Debt
General Court Impound Park Service Grant
Reserve Reserve Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
  Cash and Cash Equivalents $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,531 $9,531
  Receivables (net of allowance
    for uncollectibles) 16,340 16,340
  Restricted Assets:
     Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,667 9,419 96 8,869 6,496 55,547
  Total Assets $30,667 $9,419 $96 $8,869 $6,496 $25,871 $81,418

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
  Accounts Payable $16,340 $16,340
  Total Liabilities 0 0 0 16,340 16,340

Fund Balances
  Restricted
    Construction 9,531 9,531
    Debt Service 6,496 6,496
    Municipal Court Reserve 9,419 9,419
    Public Safety 96 96
  Committed
    General Reserve 30,667 30,667
    Park 8,869 8,869

Total Fund Balances 30,667 9,419 96 8,869 6,496 9,531 65,078

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES $30,667 $9,419 $96 $8,869 $6,496 $25,871 $81,418

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NATALIA, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

DEBT CAPITAL
SPECIAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS

Municipal NPD Debt
General Court Impound Park Service Grant
Reserve Reserve Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $46,075 $46,075
Interest 59 19 78
  Total Revenues 59 19 0 0 0 46,075 46,153

EXPENDITURES
Current:
    Culture and Recreation 7,029 7,029
  Capital Projects - 
         Capital Outlay and Other 62,575 62,575
  Total Expenditures 0 0 0 7,029 0 62,575 69,604

  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
    Expenditures 59 19 0 (7,029) 0 (16,500) (23,451)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Operating Transfers In 18,740 1,359 45,195 26,031 91,325
  Operating Transfers Out (6,521) (54,236) (60,757)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 12,219 1,359 0 0 (9,041) 26,031 30,568
Net Changes in Fund Balances 12,278 1,378 0 (7,029) (9,041) 9,531 7,117

Fund Balances - Beginning 18,389 8,041 96 15,898 15,537 57,961
Fund Balances - Ending $30,667 $9,419 $96 $8,869 $6,496 $9,531 $65,078

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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